

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
0
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
0
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
0
1

**NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE PEOPLE OF THE CITY OF
TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:**

ARTICLE X. PARKS AND RECREATION ADVISORY BOARD

Sec. 2-360. Created; composition; criteria for members; term; vacancies.

(b) Membership. All members of the Board shall be City or Leon County residents, own property within the City, or City utility customers. Members who are not City residents shall be appointed to provide appropriate representation, expertise or when deemed to be in the best interest of the Board. Residency requirements are to reflect the ratio of City participation versus County participation in the Parks, Recreation, and Neighborhood Affairs Departments programs. At least one member shall be a

CODING: Words in ~~struck through~~ type are deletions from existing language; words underlined are additions.

professional in a field complementary to the Board's scope, and at least one member shall be a member of the Tallahassee Garden Club. As much as possible, the Board will be made up of an equitable representation of City and County residents based on race and sex according to the demographic ratio of the City.

(c) Terms. The term of membership of the board members shall begin and run from June first in the year in which the appointment is made. In appointing the first parks and recreation advisory board hereunder, three (3) members shall be appointed for one (1) year, four (4) members for two (2) years, and four (4) members for three (3) years. Thereafter, each person appointed thereto shall serve for a term of three (3) years. Members shall not serve more than two (2) full consecutive terms.

(d) Vacancies. Vacancies on the board may be filled at any time by the Mayor for an unexpired term.

Sec. 2-361. Chairman.

In each year, the members of the parks and recreation advisory board shall elect one of their number chairman thereof for a term of one (1) year, beginning June first of the year of such election.

Sec. 2-362. Duties; recommendations on construction.

The duties of the city parks and recreation advisory board shall be to act in an advisory capacity to the city commission and to the parks and recreation department in the study and planning for the operation of a parks and recreation program for the beautification of streets, parks and playgrounds of the city, and for the operation of a recreation program and playgrounds

1 in the city; and said board shall make their recommendations relating thereto to the city
2 commission, the parks and recreation department, or both. No permanent structure shall be
3 constructed within any of the city parks until the plans therefor have been submitted to the parks
4 and recreation advisory board for recommendation.

5 **Section 2.** Division 1, Generally, of Article II, Facility Rules, of Chapter 13, Parks
6 and Recreation, of the Tallahassee Code of General Ordinances, is amended as follows:

7 **ARTICLE II. FACILITY RULES**

8 **DIVISION 1. - GENERALLY**

9 **Sec. 13-31. - Definitions.**

10 The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the
11 meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different
12 meaning:

13 *City parks* means all real properties owned, managed, maintained, or controlled by the
14 city and designated on a map maintained in the office of the director, regardless of the extent of
15 development or official designation, which serve as picnic grounds, recreation areas, nature
16 areas, and public waters. Due to the diversity of city parks and available park facilities, all city
17 parks shall be classified as either active, passive, or active/passive parks. In this article, a city
18 park may be referred to as a recreational facility.

19 (1) *Active parks*: Those parks which have scheduled, organized recreational activities for
20 teams and individuals, or which provide active facility sites for nonorganized leisure
21

1 play. Facilities likely to be found at an active park include, but are not limited to,
2 community centers, ball fields, tennis courts, swimming pools, and supervised
3 playgrounds.

4 (2) *Passive parks*: Those parks which do not have organized, scheduled recreational
5 activities, but which are open for the public to create their own recreational activities.

6 Facilities generally found at passive parks include, but are not limited to, open space play
7 areas, picnic shelters, park benches, gardens, and nature, hiking, and jogging trails.

8 (3) *Active/passive parks*: Those parks which have a combination of the above facilities. A
9 portion of the park has organized activities while a portion remains available for
10 unscheduled leisure play. A balance of open space and activity sites is also included.

11 *Department* means the Parks, Recreation and Neighborhood Affairs Department of the
12 City of Tallahassee.

13 *Director* means the Director of the Parks, Recreation and Neighborhood Affairs
14 Department of the City of Tallahassee or his/her designee.

15 *Handicapped person* means any person who is developmentally disabled or mentally,
16 physically or emotionally impaired as defined in F.S. § 760.22.

17 *Outdoor public assembly* or *assembly* mean any ceremony, show, exhibition, concert,
18 pageant, rally, demonstration or assembly of any kind calculated to attract at any one time the
19 attendance or attention of over 50 persons which is held in or on any street or sidewalk or any
20 portion or area of any city property or city park, as defined in this article.

21
CODING: Words in ~~struck through~~ type are deletions from existing language; words underlined are additions.

1 *Park facilities* means any improvements or structures, either natural or artificial, including,
2 but not limited to, buildings, shelters, benches, tables, playground equipment, walls, fences,
3 fountains, walkways, toilet facilities, and signs located in, upon or around a city park.

4 *Park grounds* means the real property upon which parks are located, and any and all trees,
5 shrubbery, flowers, leaves, grasses, plants, fruit, mushrooms, toadstools, dirt, rocks, water, and
6 bodies of water located above, on or under such property.

7 *Park personnel* means all persons employed by the department of parks and recreation.

8 *Park roads* means all surface areas either paved or unpaved which have been designated as
9 routes for vehicular traffic. All other traffic ways are classified as a form of trail or path.

10 *Parking areas* means any designated part of any park or road or any area contiguous thereto
11 which has been set apart for the stopping, standing or parking of any vehicle.

12 *Permit* means an outdoor public assembly permit, a park permit, or a special event permit
13 required by this article.

14 *Public use* means any lawful utilization of park grounds and facilities which is not
15 prohibited by any applicable regulation, ordinance or law and which does not interfere with or
16 obstruct the use of park grounds or facilities by any other person or member of the general public
17 who is authorized to use such park grounds or facilities.

18 *Senior citizen* means any person age 62 or older.

Sidewalk means any area or way, whether paved or unpaved, which is set aside or open to the general public to accommodate pedestrian traffic.

Sunrise means the time of day designated as sunrise by the Nautical Almanac Office, United States Naval Observatory, Washington, D.C.

Sunset means the time of day designated as sunset by the Nautical Almanac Office, United States Naval Observatory, Washington, D.C.

Vehicle means any device in, upon or by which a person or property is or may be transported on highways, streets or roadways; except that the term "vehicle" shall not include bicycles, motorized or power wheelchairs, electric personal assistive mobility devices, or electric or battery-powered toy cars. Golf carts and carriages drawn by animals are considered vehicles.

Sec. 13-32. - Purpose and intent.

(a) In order to promote the public health, safety and welfare of the citizens of the city, a parks and recreation ordinance is hereby enacted for the general purpose of assuring the proper balance between the use of park facilities and the preservation of such facilities, law, and order.

(b) The intent of this article is to:

(1) Reduce property damage and closure of facilities due to vandalism;

(2) Minimize the hazards of personal injury and loss of life;

1 (3) Minimize any activity which is dangerous to the health, safety or welfare of
2 another or which interferes with the use and enjoyment by others of a park or park
3 facility; and

4 (4) Maintain the quality of outdoor recreation resources by establishing rules and
5 regulations governing all parks and recreation facilities that are owned or
6 controlled by the city. The director is authorized to develop additional policies,
7 rules, and regulations for each city park or park facility in order to further the
8 purpose and intent of this chapter. Such additional policies, rules, and
9 regulations shall be posted on the City's web site, in the director's office, and,
10 to the extent practicable, in each city park or park facility that is subject to
11 additional policies, rules, and regulations.

12 (c) This chapter is supplemented by the Public Events Policy and Procedures in
13 Policy No. 610, City of Tallahassee Administrative Policies and Procedures Manual, and by any
14 policies, rules, and regulations for each city park or park facility as authorized in this section.

15 **Sec. 13-33. - Hours of operation.**

16 (a) The director may prepare, install, and maintain a sign or signs in each city park
17 specifying the opening and closing hours of a particular park. Each sign may be prominently
18 displayed so as to give notice to the general public of the park's hours of operation. If not
19 specifically posted, hours of operation shall be sunrise to sunset, except in areas clearly
20 illuminated for park use (i.e., lighted tennis or basketball courts), or hours specified in a permit.

1 (b) The hours of operation for any city park shall be as designated by the director, and
2 may be amended by the director from time to time in a manner consistent with the purposes of
3 this article.

4 (c) It shall be unlawful for any person to enter or remain in any city park during such
5 hours as the park is closed to public use. Violation of this subsection shall constitute a
6 noncriminal offense and shall be grounds for immediate ejection from the park or issuance by a
7 law enforcement officer of a trespass warning, or both.

8 **Sec. 13-34. - Prohibited activities in parks and recreational facilities owned, managed,**
9 **maintained, or controlled by the city; noncriminal violations; criminal violations; penalties.**

10 (a) Except for activities of a governmental agency within the scope of its
11 governmental authority, or unless specifically permitted to do so by the director or by a permit
12 issued pursuant to this article, it shall be unlawful for any person to do any one or more of the
13 following in a park or recreational facility owned, managed, maintained, or controlled by the
14 city:

15 (1) Sleep or recline in a horizontal position on any park bench or table.

16 (2) Sleep or otherwise be or remain in any bushes, shrubs or other foliage.

17 (3) Sleep at any time during any hours when the park is closed to public use.

18 (4) Sit in or on any trash receptacle provided for public use.

19 (5) Shave, shower, or bathe or otherwise be or remain in any water fountain,
20 reservoir, lake, stream, pond, or other body of water located in any city park.

21 (6) Shave, shower, or bathe in a public restroom or locker room; however, showering
22 is permitted where shower facilities are specifically provided for public use.

CODING: Words in ~~struck through~~ type are deletions from existing language; words underlined are additions.

- 1 (7) Build any hut, shanty, or shelter, or engage in any form of construction or
2 digging, or related activity unless authorized in advance by the director.
- 3 (8) Pick flowers or damage or remove plants, trees, shrubs, grass or any other part of
4 the park grounds.
- 5 (9) Erect signs, or distribute, display or affix signs, handbills, or flyers on any tree,
6 post, vehicle, or park facility or grounds except signs posted by the director
7 pursuant to this article or as specifically permitted by the director.
- 8 (10) Place, dump, abandon or leave any mammal, reptile or bird, either wild or
9 domestic, on the grounds of the park.
- 10 (11) Cook foodstuffs except where facilities for such preparations are provided by the
11 city or where cooking is otherwise authorized by the director.
- 12 (12) Set or stoke a fire except where appropriate facilities are provided.
- 13 (13) Stop, stand or park any vehicle as defined in this article in an area not specifically
14 designated for parking.
- 15

- 1 (14) Operate any vehicle on park grounds in or on any area not specifically designated
2 a park road unless permitted by the director; however, golf carts may be operated
3 in city parks where golf courses exist so long as such operation is in compliance
4 with rules and regulations established by that facility.
- 5 (15) Operate any vehicle in violation of the laws regulating traffic as provided in this
6 Code and in F.S. ch. 316.
- 7 (16) Swim or wade in any waters in any park or allow a dog to swim or wade in any
8 waters in any park unless such activity is specifically allowed as indicated by
9 signage in the park.
- 10 (17) Operate any boat, canoe, raft or watercraft of any kind regardless of the means of
11 propulsion in or upon any body of water in any city park unless authorized by the
12 director.
- 13 (18) Fish in any lake, pond or other body of water in any city park where fishing is
14 prohibited. Fishing by use of cast nets is prohibited in any park. Fishing, if not
15 prohibited, is allowed in compliance with State of Florida fishing rules and
16 regulations, including fishing licenses.
- 17 (19) Allow any dog or other fur-bearing animal to enter or remain in any park unless
18 such animal is properly restrained on a leash, except in fenced areas specifically
19

CODING: Words in ~~struck through~~ type are deletions from existing language; words underlined are additions.

designated as dog parks for dogs to play or exercise off leash. No dogs, whether or not restrained on a leash, shall be allowed on or around active recreational areas such as athletic fields, tennis courts, playgrounds, etc.

(20) Engage in any activity which is dangerous to the health, safety or welfare of another or which interferes with the use and enjoyment by others of the park or its facilities.

(21) Camp in any park, unless specifically authorized by the director.

(22) Park overnight in any park, unless specifically authorized by the director.

(23) Play golf or hit golf balls, except in city parks where golf courses exist and play is in compliance with rules and regulations established by that facility.

(24) Lead or conduct any class for a fee or provide any lessons or instruction, physical or otherwise, for a fee unless specifically authorized by the director.

(25) Conduct any solicitation of goods or services, unless permitted by the director.

Violation of this section shall be cause for immediate ejection from the park or issuance by a law enforcement officer of a trespass warning, or both.

(b) It shall be unlawful for any person to do one or more of the following in a park or recreational facility owned, managed, maintained, or controlled by the city:

...

(4) Hunt, trap, feed, or pursue wildlife of any kind except as authorized by the director.

...

(6) Loiter in or near any structure or facility in a manner not usual for law-abiding individuals under circumstances that warrant a justifiable and reasonable alarm or

CODING: Words in ~~struck through~~ type are deletions from existing language; words underlined are additions.

1 immediate concern for the safety of persons in the vicinity. See F.S. 856.021. A law
2 enforcement officer shall, prior to issuance of a trespass warning or any arrest for an
3 offense under this section, afford the person an opportunity to dispel any alarm or
4 immediate concern which would otherwise be warranted by requesting the person to
5 identify himself or herself and explain his or her presence and conduct.

6 . . .

7 (8) Throw, discharge or otherwise place or cause to be placed in the water of any fountain,
8 pond, lake, stream or other body of water located in or adjacent to any city park, or in any
9 drain flowing into such waters, or on any land inside a city park that drains to such waters
10 any substance, matter or thing, either liquid or solid, which may discolor or pollute such
11 waters.

12 Violation of this section shall constitute a noncriminal offense and shall be cause for a warning,
13 immediate ejection from the park, or issuance by a law enforcement officer of a trespass
14 warning. If warranted, a violator may be immediately ejected and given a trespass warning.

1 **Sec. 13-35. - Alcoholic beverages and controlled substances prohibited in parks and**
2 **recreational facilities owned or controlled by the city; penalty.**

3
4 (a) It shall be unlawful for any person to manufacture, possess, consume, purchase,
5 sell or offer for sale any alcoholic beverage as defined in F.S. ch. 561 or any controlled substance
6 as defined in F.S. ch. 893 in any park which is controlled by the city except where authorized by
7 the city manager.

8 (b) Violation of this section shall constitute a noncriminal offense and shall be cause
9 for immediate ejection from the park or issuance by a law enforcement officer of a trespass
10 warning, or both.

11 **Sec. 13-36. – Trespass Warnings.**

12 In addition to any other penalty allowed by law, law enforcement officers are hereby
13 granted the authority to issue trespass warnings in any city park for the purpose of enforcing the
14 provisions of this chapter, a department rule or regulation, a facility use permit, or state law. Law
15 enforcement officers may issue a trespass warning of up to one hundred eighty (180) days, which
16 may include all city parks. If a trespass warning is violated, law enforcement officers may arrest
17 the violator for trespassing pursuant to F.S. ch. 810, or any amended or successor statute. In the
18 event of an arrest of a minor, authorized law enforcement shall notify the parent or legal
19 guardian and shall maintain a record of all such violations.

20 **Sec. 13-37. Appeal of trespass warning.**

21 (a) Right of appeal. A person who receives a trespass warning and feels the warning
22 was issued in error may appeal within 15 days of receipt of the warning by filing a
23 notice of appeal with the City's Code Magistrate Coordinator, Code Enforcement
24

1 Division, Department of Economic and Community Development. The appeal shall
2 be in writing and shall include the appellant's name, address, and telephone number,
3 if any. This information shall be included on any trespass warning issued.

4 **(b) Hearing on appeal.**

5 (1) The Code Magistrate shall hold a hearing to consider the appeal, at which time
6 testimony shall be taken. The appellant may be represented by an attorney, and
7 shall have the right to testify, to call witnesses, and to present evidence.

8 (2) Notice of the hearing shall be provided to the appellant at least 10 days in advance
9 of the hearing pursuant to Section 2-186 of this Code, by posting at City Hall on
10 the Citizen Information Board located on the first floor, 300 S. Adams St.,
11 Tallahassee, FL 32301, or by telephone if a telephone number has been provided.

12 (3) The city shall bear the burden of proof by clear and convincing evidence that the
13 trespass warning was properly issued pursuant to the criteria of this section.

14 (4) The City shall not be responsible for providing a transcript of the hearing. The
15 appellant may bring a court reporter at his/her own expense.

16 (5) The Code Magistrate shall consider the testimony, reports or other documentary
17 evidence, and any other evidence presented at the hearing. Formal rules of
18 evidence shall not apply, but fundamental due process shall govern the
19 proceedings.

20 (c) Decision of the Code Magistrate. The Code Magistrate's decision shall be in writing and
21 may affirm the trespass warning or find that it was issued in error. The Code Magistrate's

1 decision is final. Any appeal shall be by petition for writ of certiorari filed in the Leon
2 County Circuit Court within 30 days of the date the Code Magistrate's decision is rendered.

3 (d) First Amendment Rights. The director may, upon request, authorize an individual who has
4 received a trespass warning to enter the property or premises to exercise his or her First
5 Amendment rights if there is no other reasonable alternative location to exercise such rights
6 or to conduct necessary municipal business. Such authorization must be in writing, shall
7 specify the duration of the authorization and any conditions thereof, and shall not be
8 unreasonably denied.

9 **Sec. 13-38. - Right of entry.**

10 Authorized park officials/personnel and law enforcement officers shall have the right at
11 all times to enter the premises of any building, structure, or enclosure of any city park including
12 such grounds, buildings, structures, or enclosures as may be leased, permitted, or set aside for the
13 private or exclusive use of any individual or group.

14 **Section 2.** Division 2, Outdoor Public Assemblies, of Article II, Facility Rules, of
15 Chapter 13, Parks and Recreation, of the Tallahassee Code of General Ordinances, is amended as
16 follows:

17 **DIVISION 2. OUTDOOR PUBLIC ASSEMBLIES**

18 *Subdivision I. In General*

19 **Sec. 13-51. - Interference.**

20 No person shall unreasonably hamper, obstruct, impede, or interfere with any duly
21 licensed public assembly, or with any person, vehicle or animal participating or used in such
22 assembly.

CODING: Words in ~~struck through~~ type are deletions from existing language; words underlined are additions.

1 **Sec. 13-52. - Parking in restricted areas near assembly.**

2 The director shall have the authority, when reasonably necessary, to prohibit or restrict
3 the parking of vehicles on any park road or in any parking area constituting a part of the route to
4 the area needed for the safe and efficient flow of traffic to or from an assembly. The director
5 shall post signs to such effect and it shall be unlawful for any person to park or leave unattended
6 any vehicle in violation thereof.

7 Subdivision II. - Permit

8 **Sec. 13-71. - Permits required.**

9 (a) No person shall advertise, engage in, stage, present, conduct, aid, form or start
10 any outdoor public assembly in any park owned, managed, maintained or controlled by the city
11 unless a permit shall first have been obtained from the director.

(b) It shall be unlawful for any person knowingly to participate in any outdoor public assembly in any park owned, managed, maintained, or controlled by the city for which a permit has not been granted.

(c) It shall be unlawful for any person in charge of or responsible for the conduct of a
duly licensed outdoor public assembly knowingly to fail to comply with any term or condition of
the park permit.

(d) Any person convicted of a violation of this section shall be punished by a fine of not more than \$500.00, imprisonment for a term not exceeding 60 days, or any combination thereof. Violation of this section may also be cause for immediate ejection from the park, or issuance by a law enforcement officer of a trespass warning, or both.

Sec. 13-72. - Application for park permit; filing; contents.

(a) Any person seeking the issuance of a park permit for an outdoor public assembly shall file an application with the director on forms to be provided by the department.

(b) Such application shall be filed not less than 30 days before the date and time of the scheduled event; however, the minimum 30-day filing period may be waived by the director for good cause shown, or if, after conferring with the chief of police regarding the date, time, place and nature of the assembly, the anticipated number of participants, and the necessity for an amount of city services which will be required in connection therewith, it is determined that such waiver will not present a hazard to the public safety because of the reduced amount of time available within which to fully process the application. The applicant must have any other permits that may be required from the federal, state, county or city governments; and any such requirements are not waived by the director in issuing an open assembly permit under this chapter. The director is authorized to charge a reasonable permit fee.

(c) The application for a park permit shall set forth the following information, and each such other information as may from time to time reasonably be required:

(1) The name, place of residence, mailing address, and telephone number of the person seeking to conduct, the assembly.

(2) If the assembly is proposed to be conducted for, on behalf of, or by an organization, the name, address and telephone number of the headquarters of the organization and of the authorized and responsible heads of such organization.

- 1 (3) The name, place of residence, mailing address and telephone number of the
2 individual person who will be the assembly chairperson and who will be
3 responsible for the conduct of the assembly.
- 4 (4) The date when the assembly is to be conducted.
- 5 (5) The type of assembly, including a description of the activities which will occur
6 during the event.
- 7 (6) The hours when such assembly will start and terminate.
- 8 (7) A description of any and all recording equipment, sound amplification equipment,
9 banners, signs or other attention-getting devices which will be utilized in
10 connection with the assembly.
- 11 (8) The approximate number of participants, not including spectators, who will
12 participate in the assembly.
- 13 (9) The approximate number of spectators who will be present at or near the
14 assembly.
- 15 (10) If the assembly is designed to be held by, and on behalf of or for, any person other
16 than the applicant, the applicant for such permit shall file with the director a
17 communication in writing from the person proposing to hold the assembly,
18 authorizing the applicant to apply for the permit on his behalf.
- 19 (11) The exact location of the assembly.
- 20 (12) A designation of any public facilities, utilities or equipment proposed to be
21 utilized.
- 22

CODING: Words in ~~struck through~~ type are deletions from existing language; words underlined are additions.

1 **Sec. 13-73. - Standards for issuance of permit.**

2 The director shall issue a permit as provided for in this chapter when, after consideration
3 of the application and such other information as may be obtained, it appears that:

4 (1) The conduct of the assembly will not interrupt substantially the safe and orderly
5 movement of other pedestrian or vehicular traffic in or contiguous to the route or
6 location of the assembly.

7 (2) The concentration of persons, animals and/or vehicles at the assembly will not
8 interfere unduly with proper fire and police protection of, or ambulance service to,
9 areas contiguous to the assembly area or other areas of the city.

10 (3) Adequate sanitation and other required health facilities are or will be made
11 available in or adjacent to the assembly area.

12 (4) There are sufficient parking places near to the site of the assembly to
13 accommodate the approximate number of automobiles reasonably expected to be
14 driven to the assembly.

15 (5) No assembly permit application for the same time and location has been received
16 which has been or will be granted unless the director determines that more than
17 one event can be safely conducted at the same time and location.

18 (6) No assembly permit application for the same time but in another location has been
19 received which has been or will be granted where the police resources required
20 for that public assembly are so great that, in combination with the subsequent
21

1 proposed application, the resulting deployment of police resources would have an
2 immediate and adverse effect upon the welfare and safety of persons and
3 property.

4 (7) No event is scheduled elsewhere in the city where the police resources required
5 for that event are so great that the deployment of police resources for the proposed
6 assembly would have an immediate and adverse effect upon the welfare and
7 safety of persons and property.

8 **Sec. 13-74. - Notice of rejection of application for permit.**

9 The director shall act promptly upon a timely filed application for a permit, but in no
10 event in less than five working days prior to the event. If the permit is denied, the applicant shall
11 be promptly notified of the denial and of the reasons therefor.

12 **Sec. 13-75. - Appeal procedure.**

13 Any applicant who has been denied an outdoor assembly permit shall have the right to
14 appeal the denial to the director. The appeal shall be filed by the applicant within five working
15 days after receipt of the notice of denial. The director shall consider the appeal and shall direct
16 that a permit be issued unless good cause for denial shall be shown as provided in section 13-73.

17 **Sec. 13-76. - Alternative permit.**

18 The director, in denying an application for a permit may, in the interest of traffic control
19 and public safety, authorize the conduct of the outdoor assembly on a date, at a time, over a route
20 or in a location different from that named by the applicant. An applicant desiring to accept an
21 alternate permit shall, within five working days after notice of the action, file a written

acceptance with the director. An alternate permit shall otherwise conform to the requirements of, and shall have the full effect of, a permit under this chapter.

Sec. 13-77. - Indemnification.

The applicant and any other persons, organizations, firms or corporations on whose behalf the application is made, by filing a permit application, agree to obtain liability insurance coverage for the scheduled event, and stipulate that they will jointly and severally indemnify and hold the city harmless against all liability, including court costs and attorney's fees, and attorney's fees on appeal, for any and all claims for damage to property, or injury to or death of persons arising out or resulting from the issuance of the permit or the conduct of the assembly or any of its participants.

Sec. 13-78. - Contents of permit.

Each permit shall include the following information:

- (1) Nature of the assembly.
- (2) Date of the assembly.
- (3) Starting time and termination time of the assembly.
- (4) The location of the assembly or the portions of the streets, parks or other facilities to be traversed or occupied by the assembly.
- (5) Such other restrictions as the director shall find necessary or appropriate to the enforcement of this division.
- (6) A notice to the applicant that the permit should be readily available upon request by law enforcement officers or park personnel during the assembly.

Sec. 13-79. - Duties of permittee.

CODING: Words in ~~struck through~~ type are deletions from existing language; words underlined are additions.

1 A permittee under this chapter shall comply with all permit directions and conditions, and
2 with all federal, state, county and city laws and ordinances. The assembly chairperson or other
3 person heading or leading such assembly shall carry the permit upon his person during conduct
4 of the assembly and shall display the permit to law enforcement officers or to park personnel
5 upon demand.

6 **Sec. 13-80. - Revocation of permit.**

7 The director shall have the authority to revoke a permit issued hereunder instantly upon
8 violation of any one or more of the conditions or standards for issuance as set forth in this
9 chapter, or when a public emergency arises where the police resources required for that
10 emergency are so great that the deployment of police services for the assembly would have an
11 immediate and adverse effect upon the welfare and safety of persons or property.

12
13 **Section 3. Severability.** If any phrase or portion of this ordinance, or the
14 particular application thereof, shall be held invalid or unconstitutional by any court,
15 administrative agency or other body with appropriate jurisdiction, the remaining sections,
16 subsections, sentences, clauses, or phrases and their application shall not be affected thereby.

17 **Section 4. Conflict.** All ordinances in conflict herewith are repealed to the extent
18 of any conflict.

19 **Section 5. Effective Date.** This ordinance shall take effect immediately upon
20 passage.

21 INTRODUCED in the City Commission on the 17th day of June, 2015.

22 PASSED by the City Commission on the 24th day of November, 2015.

CITY OF TALLAHASSEE

By: _____
Andrew D. Gillum
Mayor

ATTEST:

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By: _____
James O. Cooke, IV
City Treasurer-Clerk

By: _____
Lewis E. Shelley
City Attorney

CODING: Words in ~~struck through~~ type are deletions from existing language; words underlined are additions.